

Shire of Shark Bay

65 Knight Terrace, Denham PO Box 126, Denham 6537

Telephone (08) 9948 1218 Facsimile (08) 9948 1237 Email admin@sharkbay.wa.gov.au



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Shark Bay Shire Council held in the Council Chamber at the Shark Bay Recreation Centre, Francis Street, Denham on Wednesday 13 July 2016 commencing at 3.00 pm.

PURPOSE I advise that a special meeting of Council is called in accordance with in accordance with Section 5.4 (a), (i) of the *Local Government Act 1995*, for the adoption of Council's 2016/2017 Budget.

Con	ntents	
1.0	DECLARATION OF OPENING	3
2.0	ATTENDANCES AND APOLOGIES	3
3.0	PUBLIC QUESTION TIME	3
4.0	ADOPTION OF THE 2016/2017 BUDGET	3
5.0	MEETING CLOSURE	27



DISCLAIMER

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Shark Bay for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council/Committee meetings or during formal/informal conversations with Council members or staff.

The Shire of Shark Bay disclaims any liability for any loss whatsoever and howsoever caused arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council/Committee meetings or discussions. Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement, act or omission does so at that person's or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the broad disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for a licence, any statement or intimation of approval made by a member or officer of the Shire of Shark Bay during the course of any meeting is not intended to be an is not to be taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Shark Bay.

The Shire of Shark Bay advises that no action should be taken on any application or item discussed at a Council meeting and should only rely on **WRITTEN ADVICE** of the outcome and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Shark Bay.

1.0 DECLARATION OF OPENING

The President declared the Special Council meeting open at 3.00pm

2.0 ATTENDANCES AND APOLOGIES

PresentCr C CowellPresidentCr K CapewellDeputy PresidentCr M PriorCr L BellottieCr K LaundryCr B WakeCr G Ridgley

Mr P Anderson	Chief Executive Officer
Ms C Wood	Executive Manager Finance and Administration
Mr B Galvin	Works Manager
Mrs F Hoult	Executive / Works Assistant

Apologies Ms L Butterly

Executive Manager Community Development

<u>Visitors</u> Nil

3.0 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The President opened Public Question Time at 3.00pm, as there were no questions put forward the President closed Public Question Time at 3.01pm.

4.0 <u>ADOPTION OF THE 2016/2017 BUDGET</u> FM00005

<u>Author</u>

Executive Manager Finance and Administration

Disclosure of Any Interest

Nil

Page 3 -

Officer's Recommendation

That Council, having regard to the budget deficiency in the context of the Strategic Community Plan and the Corporate Business Plan, by Absolute Majority, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the *Local Government Act 1995,* resolves to:

PART A. 2016/2017 RATES AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS AND THE STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVES AND REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATES AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS

1. Adopt the following Differential General Rates against the valuations supplied by Landgate (as amended) as at 1 July 2016 for 2016/2017 in accordance with Sections 6.32 and 6.33 of the Act:

Differential General Rates	2016/2017 Cents in the
	Dollar
GRV Residential	9.2319
GRV Residential Vacant	9.2319
GRV Commercial	9.4872
GRV Industrial/Residential	10.2160
GRV Industrial/Residential Vacant	9.2315
GRV Rural Commercial	9.5949
GRV Resort	10.1279
UV General	19.0448
UV Mining	25.9757
UV Pastoral	13.0428
UV Exploration	24.9757

2. Adopt the following Minimum payments for the Shire of Shark Bay for 2016/2017 in accordance with Section 6.35 of the Act:

Minimum Payment	2016/2017 Minimum	
	Payment per Assessment	
GRV Residential	\$800.00	
GRV Residential Vacant	\$800.00	
GRV Commercial	\$800.00	
GRV Industrial/Residential	\$800.00	
GRV Industrial/ Residential Vacant	\$500.00	
GRV Rural Commercial	\$800.00	
GRV Resort	\$800.00	
UV General	\$835.00	
UV Mining	\$835.00	
UV Pastoral	\$835.00	
UV Exploration	\$835.00	

- 3. Adopt for 2016/2017 the Specified Area Rate of 3.4569 cents in the dollar for users of the Monkey Mia Bore against valuations supplies by Landgate (as amended) as at 1 July 2016 in accordance with Section 6.37 of the Act;
- 4. Adopt the Statement of Objectives and Reasons for proposed rates and minimum payments.

5. Note that Council has considered all submissions received from ratepayers before adopting the 2016/2017 Budget;

AMENDMENT TO OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

Reason: Council felt that the consideration and possible raising of the 2016/2017 rates and any possible concessions should be discussed together and not separate items as indicated in the agenda on pages 4 and 8.

Moved Cr Wake Seconded Cr Capewell

Council Resolution

That Council combine

PART A. 2016/2017 RATES AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS AND THE STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVES AND REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATES AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS on page 4 and PART C. CONCESSIONS AND WRITE OFFS on page 8 of the agenda as one item for consideration.

6/1 CARRIED

Moved Cr Wake Seconded Cr Capewell

Council Resolution

That Council, having regard to the budget deficiency in the context of the Strategic Community Plan and the Corporate Business Plan, by Absolute Majority, pursuant to Section 6.2 of the *Local Government Act 1995*, resolves to:

PART A. 2016/2017 RATES AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS AND THE STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVES AND REASONS FOR THE PROPOSED RATES AND MINIMUM PAYMENTS

Adopt the following Differential General Rates against the valuations supplied by Landgate (as amended) as at 1 July 2016 for 2016/2017 in accordance with Sections 6.32 and 6.33 of the Act:

Differential General Rates	2016/2017 Cents in the
	Dollar
GRV Residential	9.2319
GRV Residential Vacant	9.2319
GRV Commercial	9.4872

GRV Industrial/Residential	10.2160
GRV Industrial/Residential Vacant	9.2315
GRV Rural Commercial	9.5949
GRV Resort	10.1279
UV General	19.0448
UV Mining	25.9757
UV Pastoral	13.0428
UV Exploration	24.9757

PART C. CONCESSIONS AND WRITE OFFS

Adopt the following Minimum payments for the Shire of Shark Bay for 2016/2017 in accordance with Section 6.35 of the Act:

Minimum Payment	2016/2017 Minimum
	Payment per
	Assessment
GRV Residential	\$800.00
GRV Residential Vacant	\$800.00
GRV Commercial	\$800.00
GRV Industrial/Residential	\$800.00
GRV Industrial/ Residential Vacant	\$500.00
GRV Rural Commercial	\$800.00
GRV Resort	\$800.00
UV General	\$835.00
UV Mining	\$835.00
UV Pastoral	\$835.00
UV Exploration	\$835.00

Adopt for 2016/2017 the Specified Area Rate of 3.4569 cents in the dollar for users of the Monkey Mia Bore against valuations supplied by Landgate (as amended) as at 1 July 2016 in accordance with Section 6.37 of the Act;

Adopt the Statement of Objectives and Reasons for proposed rates and minimum payments.

Note that Council has considered all submissions received from ratepayers before adopting the 2016/2017 Budget;

Grant a write off of rates to Australian Wildlife Conservancy for Assessment 2071 being the Faure Island landing site to the value of \$3,200 in accordance with Section 6.12 and 6.47 of the *Local Government Act 1995* and provide this write off on the basis of the inequities of the valuation system for pastoral land;

Grant a concession of 7.2236 cents in the dollar on the Unimproved Value Pastoral rate category in accordance with Section 6.47 of the

Local Government Act 1995 and provide this concession on the basis of the inequities of the valuation system for pastoral land;

Grant a concession of 9.0378 cents in the dollar to Unimproved Value Exploration in accordance with Section 6.47 of the *Local Government Act 1995* and provide this concession on the basis of the inequities of the valuation system for exploration land and to recognize that the assessments are not in the production phase.

6/1 CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY

Background

As part of the function of local government and its operations, each year the Council is required, under Section 6.2 of *the Local Government Act 1995*, to formally adopt its annual financial year budget to enable the administration to carry out services and programs and to raise revenue through rates and fees and charges.

Consistent with sections 6.2(4) of *the Local Government Act 1995* and the Part 3 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, the 2016/17 Budget for the Shire of Shark Bay includes the following:

- Statement of Comprehensive Income by both Nature and Type and Program which both shows a net result of \$235,429;
- Statement of Cashflows which shows a level of cash held at the end of 2016/2017 of \$1,321,783;
- Rate setting statement showing the amount to be raised from General Rates as \$1,198,568 and an estimated carried forward amount from 2015/2016 of \$1,412,495;
- Notes to and forming part of the budget as required by legislation.

Comment

The general rates in the dollar and minimum payments are in accordance with Council's Community Strategic Plan, Corporate Business Plan and Long Term Financial Plan and, in accordance with section 6.36 of the *Local Government Act 1995*, these rates in the dollar were advertised for 21 days and submissions sought from ratepayers on the proposed rates.

Council has received one submission on the rates in the dollar and minimums. The submission (copy attached) is from Hetherington Exploration and Mining Title Services acting on behalf of Strandline Resources (formerly Gunson Resources). The submission requests that *"With respect to the current status of the mining industry and economy as a whole, Strandline requests that the Shire reconsider the increase in the Differential Rate and consider even holding off an increase with respect to the increase that will be affected by the annual increase in rent."*

The submission discusses the increase in rent and the increase in rates and states that, as a result, the overall valuation of each rates assessed experiences two annual increases. It feels that it is inappropriate for a constituent to be unfairly prejudiced in order to address budget constraints that are not directly caused by the constituent.

It should be noted that the rate yield from the Mining and UV Exploration has increased by 4% over the 2016 rate yield for these categories in accordance with Council's intention. The submission refers to the large increase in the rate in the dollar for Mining in which the company has only one property. The majority of the company's properties are in the Exploration category of which the proposed rate is 24.9757 cents in the dollar or a 14% net increase.

This increase in the rate in the dollar has come about by the decrease in the valuation of the Strandline properties. As Council would be aware, if the valuation decreases then the rate in the dollar needs to increase to generate the required level of rate yield. Therefore, although the rate in the dollar in this case has increased, the rate yield has not increased above 4% and as such Strandline will not be paying any more than this increase.

Category	Advertised Rate in the dollar	New Rate in the dollar	Reason for Change
GRV Commercial	9.3449	9.4872	To take into account interim rates which have been actioned after Council's resolution and which resulted in a decrease in valuations.
GRV Industrial/Residential Vacant	9.2319	9.2315	This change has been made to ensure that Council complies with the Local Government Act with regard to Minimum Rates

There has been two changes to the rates in the dollar since advertising. The changes affect the following categories:

The recommendation allows for the adoption of the statement of objectives and reasons for the proposed rates and minimums which were part of the advertisement process and no submissions have been received on that statement. Council has reviewed the rate categories and established a set of categories which best reflects Shark Bay circumstances.

The recommendation also provides for the levying of the Specified Area Rate for the Monkey Mia Bore loan which was raised in 2012/2013 for the purposes of installing a new bore at Monkey Mia.

PART B. 2016/2017 GENERAL CONDITIONS, CHARGES AND INTEREST

Page 8 -

Moved Cr Prior Seconded Cr Ridgley

Council Resolution

That Council:

- 1. Impose no service charge on land for 2016/2017;
- 2. Raise a charge of \$10.00 per instalment for 2016/2017 where the ratepayer has elected to pay their rates by instalments in accordance with Section 6.45(3) of the Act;
- 3. Provide the option for ratepayers to pay their rates as a single payment or by 2 or 4 equal instalments in accordance with Section 6.45(1) of the Act;
- 4. Adopt the following due dates for the payment of rates either as a single payment or by 2 or 4 instalments;

i.	Single payment		Due Date: 9 September 2016
ii.	Two instalments	First Second	Due Date: 9 September 2016 Due Date: 18 November 2016
iii.	Four instalments	First Second Third Four	Due Date: 9 September 2016 Due Date: 18 November 2016 Due Date: 27 January 2017 Due Date: 7 April 2017

- 5. Not provide any discount for early payment of rates;
- 6. Grant an incentive for the payment of the 2016/2017 rates and charges by the single payment due date by way of a lottery draw for the prizes of:
- i. First Prize Gift voucher of \$500 to be spent at any Shark Bay business;
- ii. Second Prize Two tickets to the 1616 Dirk Hartog Commemoration Ball;
- iii. Third Prize Gift voucher of \$100 to be spent at any Shark Bay business;
- 7. Charge an interest rate of 11% on any outstanding rates and charges that remain overdue as described in accordance with Section 6.51 of the Act.

7/0 CARRIED

Comment _____

This part provides the ability for ratepayers to pay their rates through instalments, the due dates for those instalments and the imposition of charges for utilizing these timeframes for payment. It also provides incentives for payment of rates and charges by the single payment due date of a lottery draw with prizes provided by the Shire of Shark Bay. It is proposed that these prizes be as follows for 2016/2017:

- First Prize Gift voucher of \$500 to be spent at any Shark Bay business;
- Second Prize Two tickets to the 1616 Dirk Hartog Commemoration Ball;
- Third Prize Gift voucher of \$100 to be spent at any Shark Bay business;

This part also allows Council to charge overdue interest rates on outstanding rates and charges and on outstanding sundry debtors as provided for in section 6.13 of the *Local Government Act 1995*.

PART C. CONCESSIONS AND WRITE OFFS

This section was bought forward and discussed with part A of the agenda.

Officer's Recommendation

That Council:

- 1. Grant a write off of rates to Australian Wildlife Conservancy for Assessment 2071 being the Faure Island landing site to the value of \$3,200 in accordance with Section 6.12 and 6.47 of the *Local Government Act 1995* and provide this write off on the basis of the inequities of the valuation system for pastoral land;
- 2. Grant a concession of cents in the dollar on the Unimproved Value Pastoral rate category in accordance with Section 6.47 of the *Local Government Act 1995* and provide this concession on the basis of the inequities of the valuation system for pastoral land;
- 3. Grant a concession of cents in the dollar to Unimproved Value Exploration in accordance with Section 6.47 of the *Local Government Act 1995* and provide this concession on the basis of the inequities of the valuation system for exploration land and to recognize that the assessments are not in the production phase.

Comment

This part provides Council with an opportunity to consider any write off and concessions that it wishes to provide in 2016/2017. The financial implications for such an action need to be fully considered prior to adoption as any concession not included in the budget as presented will result in a loss situation to the budget outcome and require an adjustment to the expenditure or to the transfers to reserves to account for this loss. The budget is presented as a balanced budget and includes the same concession as provided for in the 2015/2016 budget to the Unimproved Value (UV) Pastoral and the Unimproved Value (UV) Exploration categories. Council has received a request from Strandline Resources for the continued application of concessions for the category of UV Exploration.

The concession provided by Council in 2015/16 was 6.9548 cents in the dollar for Unimproved Value Pastoral resulting in a net rate in the dollar of 5.5954 cents in the dollar and 7.6981 cents in the dollar for Unimproved Value Exploration resulting in a net rate in the dollar of 14.1884 cents in the dollar.

This part also provides the opportunity to waive the rates for the landing site at Faure Island. This practice has been in place for several years and it is recommended that the rates for the landing parcel of rates be written off again this year.

PART D. 2016/2017 FEES AND CHARGES

Moved Cr Capewell Seconded Cr Prior

Council Resolution

That Council:

1. Adopt the 2016/2017 Schedule of Fees and Charges.

7/0 CARRIED

<u>Comment</u>

This part recommends the adoption of the proposed fees and charges for 2016/2017 which Council has previously reviewed. There have been no changes to this document since the review.

PART E. 2016/2017 CAPITAL WORKS

Moved Cr Cowell Seconded Cr Capewell

Council Resolution

That Council:

1. Adopt the 2016/2017 Capital Works budget.

7/0 CARRIED

Comment

This part recommends the adoption of the proposed capital works program for 2016/2017 which Council has previously reviewed. The document provides for those projects that are carry forwards from 2015/2016 which include the Refuse Tip Recycling, Recreation Grounds, Foreshore Redevelopment, Community Bus, Refurbishment of Old Jail and Stables, Cycle-ways on the Foreshore and Tourism and Information Bay Signage.

PART F. ADOPTION OF THE 2016/2017 BUDGET

Moved	Cr Laundry
Seconded	Cr Ridgley

Council Resolution

That Council:

- 1. Adopt a reporting material variance of \$5,000 or 5% as per AASB1031 and regulation 34 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996;
- 2. Adopt the Significant Accounting Policies attached and included in the 2016/2017 Budget document; and
- 3. Adopt the 2016/2017 Budget for the Shire of Shark Bay as presented in the accompanying attachment.

7/0 CARRIED

Comment_

This part recommends the adoption of the 2016/2017 Budget, sets the reporting variance for monthly reporting to Council and adopts the significant accounting policies separately to the budget as advised by the auditors. The budget has been based on an estimated carry forward from 2015/2016 of \$1,412,495. This is an estimate only as the annual financial statements for 2015/2016 have yet to be finalized and there will be some alteration to this final figure as part of this process.

The budget allows for a transfer from reserves of \$1,382,458 and a transfer to reserves of \$415,707. The transfer to reserves will provide a provision for the securing of capital for future projects and renewal expenditure which will be required to ensure that Council's assets are maintained to a sustainable level of service provision.

From a profit and loss perspective, the budget shows a profit for 2016/2017 of \$235,429 however this includes the revenue from non-operating grants in accordance with accounting standards and it further includes depreciation expense which is not funded. Taking these factors into consideration, the actual operating position of the Council is a profit of \$633,366 which provides funding for capital liabilities and capital projects.

From a cash flow perspective, it is expected that the cash position will decrease by \$5,863,135 in 2016/2017 as Council completes carry forward projects and current projects. It is expected that all projects in the capital works program will be completed in 2016/2017 provided funding is received as expected. The level of cash expected at the end of 2016/2017 is \$1,321,783 which is made up on working cash of \$131,700 and reserve cash of \$1,030,646.

Further details on the separate components of the 2016/2017 budget are included in the budget document.

PART G ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 2016

MovedCr PriorSecondedCr Capewell

Council Resolution

That Council:

1. Receive and endorse the Asset Management Plan for 2016/2017. 7/0 CARRIED

Comment

This part acknowledges that the Asset Management Plan has been completed. Council is not required to adopt this Plan, however it is appropriate that it recognizes that it does exist. Over 2016/2017 further work will be done on this Plan to incorporate it into the Long Term Financial Plan as these two documents are intrinsically connected.

Legal Implications

Section 6.2 of the *Local Government Act 1995* requires Council to adopt a budget prior to 31 August each year while Part 3 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 states what needs to be included in the budget.

Policy Implications

Council is required to adopt the Significant Accounting Policies as part of the budget adoption. These policies form the basis on which Council will carry out its financial responsibilities.

Financial Implications

The 2016/2017 budget provides Council with the opportunity to continue to carry out significant projects in the future, however highlights the reliance of Council on grant funding and the need to become more "self-sufficient" financially so that, should grant funding not be available, Council can continue to provide high quality services to the community and maintain its assets in a sustainable manner.

Strategic Implications

Outcome 4.1.3 Maintain accountability and financial responsibility.

Risk Management

There is a high risk of not adopting the 2016/2017 Budget as this provides the authority for the administration to continue to provide services to the community.

Voting Requirements

Absolute Majority is required for this item.

<u>Signatures</u> Author Chief Executive Officer Date of Report

C Wood F Anderson 17 June 2016



Exploration & Mining Title Services www.hemts.com.au

20 June 2016

Via Registered Post: 942687743019

Paul Anderson Chief Executive Officer Shire of Shark Bay PO Box 126 Denham, WA, 6537

RECEIVED 7 2 JUN 2016

Dear Sir

SHIRE OF SHARK BAY

Notice of Intention to Impose Differential Rates UV - Mining **UV** - Exploration

Hetherington Exploration & Mining Title Services Pty Ltd acts on behalf of Strandline Resources Limited ("Strandline").

I refer to the Shire's intention to increase the Differential Rates in the category of "UV - Mining" ("UV-M") and "UV - Exploration". For convenience this submission will focus on UVM as it is the primary concern of Strandline.

Strandline hold the following holdings and associated assessment numbers;

- Strandline paid approximately \$102,000 in Shire Rates for the period ending 2016; i)
- ii) The Mining Leases have been granted since 2004 without change in size, which would make Strandline contributions via Shire Rates one of the highest out of all constituents during this period.

Lease	Assessment Number
E09/939	A3007
E09/940	A3008
M09/102	A2101
M09/103	A2102
M09/104	A2103
M09/105	A2104
M09/106	A2105
M09/111	A4135
M09/112	A4136
Coburn Pastoral Lease	A2005

Response to Key Values

The Shire has advised that the value has been calculated based on;

SYDNEY Hetherington Exploration & Mining Title Services Pty Ltd Hetherington Exploration & Mining Time ABN 51 519 090 290 500 Willoughty Road, 1° Floor (Access via Prentice Lone) Willoughty NSW 2068 PO Box 765, Willoughty NSW 2069 Tel: (02) 9967 4844 Fax: (02) 9967 4614 E-mail: sydney@hemts.com.au

BRISBANE ABN 42 153 626 110 Level 6, 445 Upper Edward Streat Spring Hill QLD 4000 Spring Hill (202) 4000 PO Box 49, Spring Hill LPO Spring Hill (202) 4004 Tot: (07) 3236 1768 Fax: (07) 3236 1758 E-mail: brisbane@hemtsqld.com.au

PERTH Hetherington Exploration & Mining Title Services (QLD) Pty Ltd Hetherington Exploration & Mining Title Services (WA) Pty Ltd ABN 64 003 122 996 83 Brisbane Street (Crir Brisbane & Beaufort Streets) PERTH WA 6000 PO Box 8249. Perth Business Centre PERTH WA 6849 Tel: (08) 9228 9977 Fax: (08) 9328 3710 E-mail: perth@hemts.com.au

UV - Mining

This category applies to mining tenement leases and reflects the contribution required by mining to the maintenance of the Shire's assets and services to the extent that the mining operations use these assets.

Strandline's Coburn Zircon Project remains in commissioning status as Strandline continue their efforts to secure a partner to begin building the mine plant. As a result, the Mining Lease have had a limited footprint of on-ground activity for the last 7 years. During this time, Strandline strain on the Shire, it's resources, services and infrastructure would have been extremely limited. The Shires assets and services to Strandline would not have increased during this period.

Whilst the Shire has kept their increases (for the most part) under 5% in previous periods, the Shire is proposing an increase of over 18% for the period ending 2017;

 As the table shows, that the UV rate has nearly doubled since 2010 with no corresponding increase of activity from Strandline.

Year	Rate In (UV)	% Increase
2009	12.93	1205/22 ³¹¹ 03 四小金属
2010	13.5953	5.15%
2011	14.2751	5.00%
2012	15.3694	7.67%
2013	16.988	10.53%
2014	18.4012	8.32%
2015	19.3581	5.20%
2016	21.8865	13.06%
2017	25.9757	18.68%

The corresponding increase in the rate for pastoral leases remains under 5%;

Year	Rate In (UV)	% Increase
2016	12.5412	
2017	13.0428	4.00%

For full disclosure I note that the valuation of each property assessment is pegged directly to the rental due for each mining tenement, from the definition section of the Valuation of Land Act 1978 (WA);

"unencumbered value" land in respect of which ---

(I) a mining tenement is held pursuant to an agreement made with the Crown in the right of the State and scheduled to an Act approving the agreement —

(A) 5 times the annual rent per hectare for the first 1 000 h or part thereof;

(B) 2.5 times the annual rent per hectare for the next 9 000 h or part thereof;

(C) 0.25 times the annual rent per hectare for each hectare in

excess of 10 000 h

The rent charged for each lease has increased each period annually due to the application of the CPI index (the decrease in 2012 was due to the removal of GST from rent payable);

	÷ .		1.4	
hat	t han	10.04	10 T	0.00
IK	108	c a		1982

Exploration & Mining Title Services

Page 2

PE Rent	Rent per Ha	% Increase
2008	14.52	
2009	14.96	3.03%
2010	15.62	4.41%
2011	15.95	2.11%
2012	15	-5.96%
2013	15.4	2.67%
2014	15.7	1.95%
2015	16.1	2.55%
2016	16.5	2.48%
2017		

As a result, the overall valuation of each rates assessed experiences two annual increases. It is inappropriate for a constituent to be unfairly prejudiced in order to address budget constraints that are not directly caused by the constituent.

With respect to the current status of the mining industry and economy as a whole, Strandline requests the Shire reconsider the increase in the Differential Rate and consider even holding off an increase with respect to the increase that will be affected by the annual increase in rent.

Strandline takes the opportunity to highlight its appreciation of the voluntary concession applied by the Shire during the last period (and in the period ending 2015) and hope the Shire again applies this voluntary concession regardless of the outcome on the Different Rates issue. However, the issue of the underlying calculations and rate in the dollar cannot be ignored as an increase of these numbers will lead to higher valuations in the future.

Strandline looks forward to your response and reconsideration of the planned substantial increase in Differential Rates.

Yours faithfully

Hong-Jim Saw Mineral Titles Consultant Hetherington Exploration & Mining Title Services (WA) Pty Ltd Perth Office



Page 3



SHIRE OF SHARK BAY 2016/17 DIFFERENTIAL RATES STATEMENT OF OBJECTS AND REASONS

Objects and Reasons for Implementing a Differential Rate

In accordance with Section 6.36 of the Local Government Act 1995 and the Council's "Notice of Intention to Impose Differential Rates", the following tails the objectives and reasons for those proposals

information details the objectives and reasons for those proposals.

What are Rates?

The raising of rates is the primary source of revenue of all Councils throughout Australia. The purpose of levying rates is to meet Council's proposed budget requirements each year in a manner that is fair and equitable to the ratepayers of the community.

In Western Australia land is valued by Landgate Valuation Services (Valuer General's Office – a State Government agency) and those values are forwarded to each Local Government.

Two types of values are calculated:

- Gross Rental Value (GRV); and
- Unimproved Value (UV)

To calculate the rates to be charged, Council multiplies a rate in the dollar by the supplied value. The rate in the dollar is determined by the level of revenue the Council wishes to raise and is dependent on its proposed budget.

Apart from the need to ensure sufficient revenue to meet its expenditure needs, Council must be mindful of the impact and affordability of rates to the community.

Differential Rating

Local Government, under section 6.33 of the Local Government Act 1995, have the power to implement differential rating in order to take into account certain characteristics of the rateable land.

These characteristics include:

- The purpose for which the land is zoned under the town planning scheme in force;
- The predominant use for which the land is held or used as determined by the local government;
- whether or not the land is vacant land; or
- any other characteristic or combination of characteristics prescribed.

Differential rates may be applied according to any, or a combination of the above characteristics. However, local governments are constrained in the range of differential rates that they may impose. That is, a local government may not impose a differential rate which is more than twice the lowest differential rate applied by that local government unless approval from the Minister is sought.

STATEMENT OF OBJECTS AND REASONS -DIFFERENTIAL RATES

GRV - Residential

This category is applied to all properties with a land use that does not fall within any of the other categories in GRV. The rate reflects the level of rating required to raise revenue for the Council to operate efficiently and provide the diverse range of services and programs required for developed residential areas.

GRV – Vacant

This category is applied to residential land that has not been developed.

GRV - Industrial /Residential

This category is applied to all properties with an industrial land use which has the capacity for a caretaker's residence and is located in the industrial estate. The rate reflects the level of infrastructure required to maintain an industrial area and the ability of commercial property owners to utilise taxation benefits.

GRV – Industrial/Residential Vacant

This category is applied to all properties with an industrial land use which has not been developed. The rate reflects the level of infrastructure required to maintain an industrial area and the ability of commercial property owners to utilise taxation benefits.

GRV - Commercial

This category is applied to properties with a commercial land use and reflects the level of services to commercial operators and the ability of commercial property owners to utilise taxation benefits.

GRV Rural Commercial

This category is applied to properties of a commercial nature which are located outside of the town centre. The rate reflects the level of infrastructure and services provided to these properties and the ability of commercial property owners to utilise taxation benefits.

GRV – Resort

This category is applied to properties of a commercial nature which are established with the purpose of providing accommodation and activities to the tourism market. The rate reflects the level of infrastructure and services provided to these properties and the ability of commercial property owners to utilise taxation benefits.

UV – General

This category is applied to all properties which do not fall into one of the other UV categories and includes all unimproved land. The rate reflects a contribution towards built infrastructure and recognises that this infrastructure is used by all property owners.

UV - Pastoral

This category is applied to the pastoral properties and reflects the contribution required by pastoral properties for the facilities that are available to them in the Shire.

UV - Mining

This category applies to mining tenement leases and reflects the contribution required by mining to the maintenance of the Shire's assets and services to the extent that the mining operations use these assets.

UV Exploration

This category applies to mining exploration and applies until the exploration moves to the establishment of mining activities. This rates reflects the contribution to the maintenance of the Shire' assets and services.

GRV Minimum

The GRV minimum is considered to be the minimum contribution for basic infrastructure and services.

UV Minimum

The UV minimum is considered to be the minimum contribution for basic infrastructure and services.

	JIGNI	rica	NT ACCOUN	111		/i⊑3						
<u>_)</u>	Basis of Preparation			_								
aj	The budget has been prepared in acc	ordo	aco with appl	icał	alo Auetro	lion A	coounting Stands	arde				
	(as they apply to local government and							aius				
	Interpretations, other authorative pron											
	Board, the Local Government Act 199											
	policies which have been adopted in t											
	have been consistently applied unless				buuget a	e pre	sented below an	u				
	nave been consistently applied unless	5 5121	eu otherwise	•								
	Except for cash flow and rate setting i	nform	nation the h	ıda	et has als	n hee	on prepared on th	<u>م</u>				
	Except for cash flow and rate setting information, the budget has also been prepared on the accrual basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the											
	measurement at fair value of selected											
		nen										
	The Local Government Reporting Entity											
	All funds through which the Shire cont			carr	y on its fu	nctio	ns have been					
	included in the financial statements fo											
	In the process of reporting on the loca	al gov	ernment as a	sir	igle unit, a	all trai	nsactions and					
	balances between those Funds (for ex							en				
	eliminated.											
	All monion hold in the Truck Fund	0.10	dod from th	£:		0.000	to A comparate					
	All monies held in the Trust Fund are						ts. A separate					
	statement of those monies appears at			lage	et docume	ent.						
-)	204E/4C Actual Delenses			-								
)	2015/16 Actual Balances Balances shown in this budget as 201	5/16	Actual are of	n fo	rooost of t	ho tin	no of hudgot					
	preparation and are subject to final ad			5 10	lecasi ai i	ne un	ne or budget					
	preparation and are subject to final ad	ijusin	ients.	-								
-)	Rounding Off Figures											
•)	All figures shown in this budget, other	than	a rate in the	dol	lar are ro	unde	d to the nearest d	Iollar				
	Ai ligures shown in this budget, other	than				unue						
4)	Rates, Grants, Donations and Othe	r Co	ntributions									
~)				coar	nised as re	eveni	les when					
	Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the Shire obtains control overt he assets comprising the contributions.											
	Control over assets acquired from rate			ne c	commence	ment	of the rating peri	od				
	or, where earlier, upon receipt of the r	ates.										
e)	Goods and Services Tax (GST)											
•)	Revenues, expenses and assets are r	recor	nised net of t	the	amount of	GST	except where th	ne				
	amount of GST incurred is not recove											
	Receivables and payables are stated											
	GST recoverable from, or payable to,	the A	ATO IS INCIUD	ed v	with receiv	ables	s or payables in th	ne				
	statement of financial position.			_								
	Cash flows are presented on a gross	basis	. The GST c	omp	onents of	cash	flows arising fro	m				
	investing or financing activities which	are re	ecoverable fr	om,	or payab	le to,	the ATO are					
	presented as operating cash flows.											
	Superannuation			-								
f)	The Shire contributes to a number of s	SUDA	rannuation fu	nde	on hehal	fofe	mlovees					
f)		-					прюуеез.					
f)	All funds to which the Shire contributes are defined contribution plans.											
f)												
	Cash and Cash Equivalents											
	Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include ca				Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits available on demand with banks, other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known							
	Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include ca with banks, other short term highly liqu	uid in	vestments th	at a	re readily	conv	ertible to known					
	Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include ca with banks, other short term highly liqu amounts of cash and which are subject	uid in	vestments th	at a	re readily	conv	ertible to known					
	Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include ca with banks, other short term highly liqu	uid in	vestments th	at a	re readily	conv	ertible to known					

	Significant Accounting Policies cont.					
(h)	Trade and Other Receivables					
(11)	Trade and other receivables include amour	ts due from r	ote	navers for unr	aid rates and service	
	charges and other amounts due from third					
	ordinary course of business.	Surfies for go	003	Sold and Selv		,
	Receivables expected to be collected within	12 months o	of th	e end of the r	eporting period are	
	classified as current assets. All other receiv					
	Collectability of trade and other receivables	is reviewed	on a	an ongoing ba	sis. Debts that are	
	known to be uncollectible are written off wh					
	raised when there is objective evidence that					
		,				
(i)	Inventories					
	General					
	Inventories are measured at the lower of co	st and net re	alis	able value.		
	Net realisable value is the estimated selling	price in the o	ordi	nary course o	f business less the	
	estimated costs of completion and the estin	nated costs n	ece	ssary to make	the sale.	
	Land Held for Resale					
	Land held for development and sale is valu					st
	includes the cost of acquisition, developme					
	completion of development. Finance costs	and holding c	har	ges incurred a	after development is	
	completed are expensed.					
	Gains and losses are recognised in profit o					
	contract of sale if significant risks and rewa	ros, and eneo	CUV	e control over	the land, are passed	
	on to the buyer at this point.					
	Land held for sale is classified as current e	vcent where i	t ic	held as non-c	urrent based on	
	Council's intentions to release for sale.					
(i)	Fixed Assets					
U/	Each class of fixed assets within either pro	oertvi nlant ar	nd e	auinment or i	nfrastructura is	
	carried at cost or fair value as indicated les					
	and impairment losses.	s, where app	lica	bie, any accu		
	•					
	Initial Recognition and Measurement be	tween Mand	ato	ry Revaluatio	on Dates	
	All assets are initially recognised at cost an		tly r	revalued in ac	cordance with the	
	mandatory measurement framework detaile	d above.				
	In relation to this initial measurement, cost i	s determined	as	the fair value	of the assets given	
	as consideration plus costs incidental to the					
	nominal consideration, cost is determined a					
	non-current assets constructed by the Shire					
	construction, direct labour on the project ar					/erheads.
	Individual assets acquired between initial re	•				
	in accordance with the mandatory measure					
	less accumulated depreciation as manager			• •		
	be subject to subsequent revaluation of the mandatory measurement framework detailed		Sar	y uate in acco		
	manualory measurement indifiework detaile					
	Revaluation					
		rovaluation		note are are	lited to a revoluction	
	Increases in the carrying amount arising on surplus in equity. Decreases that offset pre					
	against revaluation surplus directly in equit					e
	against revaluation surplus directly in equit	y. An other de	cre	ases are reco	gnised in profit of los	э.

Land Under Roads					
In Western Australia, all land under r	oads i	s Crown land,	the	e responsibility f	or managing which,
is vested in the local government.					
Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council	oloctor	h not to record	nice	any value for l	and under roads
acquired on or before 30 June 2008.					
Accounting Standard AASB 1051 La					
Management) Regulation 16(a)(i) pro					
asset.		<u> </u>		J	Ŭ
In respect of land under roads acqui					
Government (Financial Management	t) Regi	ulation 16(a)(i)) pr	ohibits local gov	ernments from
recognising such land as an asset.					
Whilst such treatment is inconsistent	t with t	he requiremen	nte	of AASB 1051 1	ocal Government
(Financial Management) Regulation					
Local Government (Financial Manag					
) regulations	pre		
Consequently, any land under roads	acqui	red on or after	r 1 .	July 2008 is not	included as an asse
of the Shire					
Depreciation					
The depreciable amount of all fixed a					
depreciated on a straight-line basis of					
is held ready for use. Leasehold imp					
unexpired period of the lease or the	estima	ted useful life	of	the improvemen	ts.
Major depreciation periods used for	each c	lass of depred	ciat	ole asset are:	
Buildings			-	10 to 50 years	
Furniture and Equipment				5 to 10 years	
Plant and Equipment Heritage			2	5 to 10 years 5 to 100 years	
Sealed Roads and Streets			2	5 to 100 years	
- Subgrade			N	ot Depreciated	
- Pavement				0 to 100 years	
- Seal	Bitum	inous Seals		15 to 22 years	
		alt Surfaces		30 years	
Formed Roads (Unsealed)					
- Subgrade			N	ot Depreciated	
- Pavement				18 years	
Footpaths			4	10 to 80 years	
Drainage Systems					
- Drains and Kerbs			2	20 to 60 years	
- Culverts				60 years	
- Pipes				80 years	
- Pits				60 years	
The exects residuely shows and	 		J -	nd adjusts - 1'f	nuonulata at the
The assets residual values and usef	ui ilves	s are reviewed	ג, a	nu adjusted if ap	opropriate, at the en
of each reporting period.					
An asset's carrying amount is writter) down	immediatoly	to it	e recoverable a	mount if the accot's
carrying amount is greater than its e	อแกลแ		e ar	nount.	
Gains and losses on disposals are d	letermi	ned by compa	arin	a proceeds with	the carrying
amount. These gains and losses are					
Capitalisation Threshold					
	1	1			

···/	Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities								
	When performing a reveluation the Chine uses a usin of both independent and representent								
	When performing a revaluation, the Shire uses a mix of both independent and management								
	valuations using the following as a guide:								
	Fair Value is the price that the Shire would receive to sell the asset or would have to pay to								
	transfer a liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable								
	and willing market participants at the measurement date.								
	As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing								
	information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having								
	regard to the characteristics of the specific asset. The fair values of assets that are not traded								
	in an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation								
	techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.								
	To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the								
	asset (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or, in the								
	absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of								
	the reporting period (ie the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset after								
	taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).								
	For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market								
	participant's ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market								
	participant is ability to use the asset in its highest and best use of to send to another market								
	Fair Value Hierarchy								
	AASB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy,								
	which categorises fair value measurement into one of three possible levels based on the lowest								
	level that an input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:								
	Level 1								
	Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or								
	liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.								
	Level 2								
	Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.								
	Level 3								
	Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.								
	The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined								
	using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent								
	possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair								
	value are observable, the asset or liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs								
	are not based on observable market data, the asset or liability is included in Level 3.								
	Valuation techniques								
	The Shire selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured.								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Shire are consistent with one or more of the								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Shire are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches: Market approach								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Shire are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches: Market approach Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Shire are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches: Market approach								
	which sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by the Shire are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches: Market approach Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market								

	Significant Accounting Policies cont.							
	Cost approach			_		-		
	Valuation techniques that reflect the curre	ent r	replacement	со	st of an ass	et at	its current service	
	capacity.							
	Each valuation technique requires inputs	tha	t reflect the	ass	sumptions th	at b	uyers and sellers	
	would use when pricing the asset or liabil	lity,	including as	sui	mptions abo	ut ris	sks. When	
	selecting a valuation technique, the Shire	e giv	es priority to	b th	ose techniq	ues	that maximise	
	the use of observable inputs and minimis	e th	e use of unc	bs	ervable inpu	ts. I	nputs that are	
	developed using market data (such as pu	Jplic	ly available	info	ormation on	actu	al transactions) and	b
	reflect the assumptions that buyers and s							
	liability and considered observable, when							
	therefore are developed using the best in	nforn	nation availa	ıble	e about such	ass	umptions are	
	considered unobservable.					_		
							(F ine and in I M and an	
	The mandatory measurement framework							
	Regulations requires, as a minimum, all a							
	disclosures, in accordance with the requi	rem	ents of Aust	all	an Accounti	ig S	tandards have bee	n
	made in the budget as necessary.			_		-		
(I)	Financial Instruments			_		-		
(1)				_		-		
	Initial Recognition and Measurement							
	Financial assets and financial liabilities a	re re	ecoanised w	he	n the Shire b	eco	mes a partv to	
	the contractual provisions to the instrume							
	that the Shire commits itself to either the							
	accounting is adopted).	·			,			
	Financial instruments are initially measure	ed a	at fair value p	olu	s transactior		sts, except where	
	the instrument is classified 'at fair value the		ugh profit or	los	s', in which	case	transaction costs	
	are expensed to profit or loss immediately	у.						
	Classification and Subsequent Measu							
	Financial instruments are subsequently n	neas	sured at fair	val	lue, amortise	d co	ost using the	
	effective interest rate method, or cost.			_				
	Amortised cost is calculated as:	_		_		_		
	Amonised cost is calculated as.							
	(a) the amount in which the financial a	1999	t or financial	llia	ability is mea	sure	d at initial	
	recognition;	1000						
	(b) less principal repayments and any	redu	uction for imp	bai	rment: and			
	(c) plus or minus the cumulative amorti					bet	veen the amount	
	initially recognised and the maturity a							
	rate method.				0			
	The effective interest method is used to a	alloc	ate interest	inc	ome or inter	est (expense over the	
	relevant period and is equivalent to the ra							
	receipts (including fees, transaction costs	s an	d other pren	niuı	ms or discou	nts)	through the	
	expected life (or when this cannot be relia	ably	predicted, t	he	contractual	term) of the financial	
	instrument to the net carrying amount of t	the f	financial ass	et	or financial I	abil	ty. Revisions to	
	expected future net cash flows will neces					yinç	value with a	
	consequential recognition of an income o	or ex	pense in pro	ofit	or loss.			
						_		
	(i) Financial assets at fair value throug							
	Financial assets are classified at "fair							
	trading for the purpose of short term p							
	current assets. Such assets are subse			ed	at fair value	with	n changes in	
	carrying amount being included in pro		1055.	_				
	(ii) Loans and receivables							
	Loans and receivables are non-deriva	tive	financial as	set	s with fixed	or de	eterminable	
	payments that are not quoted in an ac							
	amortised cost. Gains or losses are re	ecog	nised in pro	fit c	or loss.			
	Loans and receivables are included in				ere they are	exp	ected to mature	
	within 12 months after the end of the r	repo	rting period.					

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments	3					
Held-to-maturity investments an	re non-de	rivative finan	cial	assets wi	th fixe	d maturities and
fixed or determinable payments						
and ability to hold to maturity. T						
losses are recognised in profit						
Held-to-maturity investments a	re include	d in current a	asse	ets where	they a	re expected to
mature within 12 months after t	he end of	the reporting	g pe	riod. All o	her in	vestments are
classified as non-current.						
(iv) Available for cale financial of						
(iv) Available-for-sale financial as			6	!	1 - 11	
Available-for-sale financial asso						
to be classified into other categ						
designated as such by manage						
where there is neither a fixed m	naturity no		.em	inable pa	yment	5.
They are subsequently measur	red at fair	value with ch	han	nes in suc	h fair '	value (i.e. gains or
losses) recognised in other cor						
financial asset is derecognised						
recognised in other comprehen				-		
Available-for-sale financial asso	ets are inc	cluded in curi	rent	assets, w	here t	they are expected to
be sold within 12 months after			g pe	eriod. All o	ther a	vailable for sale
financial assets are classified a	as non-cur	rrent.				
(v) Financial liabilities						
Non-derivative financial liabilitie	oc (ovel fi	nancial quar	onto		ubcog	uantly managurad at
amortised cost. Gains or losses						denity measured at
	5 410 1000	grilood in the	, bit		•	
Impairment						
A financial asset is deemed to be	impaired i	f and only if	the	re is obie	ctive e	vidence of impairm
as a result of one or more events						
estimated future cash flows of the				ourrou, m		
In the case of available-for-sale fir	nancial as	sets. a signif	icar	nt or prolo	naed a	decline in the marke
value of the instrument is consider						
loss immediately. Also, any cumula						
comprehensive income is reclassi					lobbg	
				point.		
In the case of financial assets carr	ried at am	ortised cost	lose	s events m	nav ind	clude: indications th
the debtors or a group of debtors					-	
delinguency in interest or principa						
delinquency in interest or principa financial reorganisation; and chan		ears or econ				
financial reorganisation; and chan		ears or econ				
		ears or econ				
financial reorganisation; and chan			loar	ns and rec	eivabl	es), a separate
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults.	ortised cos	st (including				
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo	ortised cos uce the ca	st (including rrying amour	nt of	financial	assets	s impaired by credit
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas	st (including rrying amour sures of reco	nt of over	financial y, if mana	assets gemer	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recover	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an	st (including rrying amour sures of reco y means, at	nt of over that	financial y, if mana point the	assets gemer writte	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ared by an t or the ca	st (including rrying amour sures of recc y means, at rrying amoun	nt of over that it of	financial y, if mana point the impaired	assets gemer writte financ	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all pos carrying amount cannot be recover charged to the allowance account	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ared by an t or the ca	st (including rrying amour sures of recc y means, at rrying amoun	nt of over that it of	financial y, if mana point the impaired	assets gemer writte financ	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all pos carrying amount cannot be recover charged to the allowance account	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ared by an t or the ca	st (including rrying amour sures of recc y means, at rrying amoun	nt of over that it of	financial y, if mana point the impaired	assets gemer writte financ	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recove charged to the allowance account directly if no impairment amount w	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an or the ca vas previor	st (including rrying amour sures of recc y means, at rrying amoun usly recognis	nt of over that it of sed	financial a y, if mana point the impaired in the allo	assets gemer writte financ wance	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce account.
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at amo allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recove charged to the allowance account directly if no impairment amount w Derecognition	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an or the ca vas previo	st (including rrying amour sures of reco y means, at rrying amoun usly recognis ne contractua	nt of over that it of sed	financial a y, if mana point the impaired in the allo hts for rec	assets gemer writter finance wance ceipt c	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce e account. If cash flows expire
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at and allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recover charged to the allowance account directly if no impairment amount w Derecognition Financial assets are derecognised	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an or the ca vas previou d where the party, wh	st (including rrying amour sures of reco y means, at rrying amoun usly recognis ne contractua nereby the Sh	nt of over that it of sed I rig nire	financial a y, if mana point the impaired in the allo hts for rec no longer	assets gemer writte financ wance wance ceipt c has a	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce e account. If cash flows expire
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at and allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recover charged to the allowance account directly if no impairment amount w Derecognition Financial assets are derecognised the asset is transferred to another	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an or the ca vas previou d where the party, wh	st (including rrying amour sures of reco y means, at rrying amoun usly recognis ne contractua nereby the Sh	nt of over that it of sed I rig nire	financial a y, if mana point the impaired in the allo hts for rec no longer	assets gemer writte financ wance wance ceipt c has a	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce e account. If cash flows expire
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at and allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recover charged to the allowance account directly if no impairment amount w Derecognition Financial assets are derecognised the asset is transferred to another	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an or the ca vas previou d where th party, wh and benefit	st (including rrying amour sures of reco y means, at rrying amoun usly recognis ne contractua nereby the Sh fits associate	nt of over that at of sed Il rig nire	financial a y, if mana point the impaired in the allo hts for rec no longer ith the ass	assets gemer writte financ wance wance ceipt c has a set.	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce account. If cash flows expire ny significant
financial reorganisation; and chan defaults. For financial assets carried at and allowance account is used to redu losses. After having taken all post carrying amount cannot be recover charged to the allowance account directly if no impairment amount w Derecognition Financial assets are derecognised the asset is transferred to another continual involvement in the risks	ortised cos uce the ca sible meas ered by an or the cal vas previou d where th party, wh and benef	st (including rrying amour sures of reco y means, at rrying amoun usly recognis ne contractua nereby the Sh fits associate the related o	nt of over that t of sed l rig nire ed w	financial a y, if mana point the impaired in the allo hts for rec no longer ith the ass jations are	assets gemer writte finance wance ceipt c has a set.	s impaired by credit nt establishes that th n-off amounts are ial assets is reduce a account. If cash flows expire ny significant narged, cancelled o

n)	Impairment of Assets									
,										
	In accordance with Australian Accounting S	Standards the S	hire assets, oth	ner than inventories,						
	are assessed at each reporting date to det									
	impaired.									
	Where such an indication exists, an impair	ment test is car	ried out on the	asset by comparing the						
	recoverable amount of the asset, being the									
	value in use, to the asset's carrying amour	it.								
	Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately									
	in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another									
	standard (e.g. AASB 116) whereby any imp	pairment loss of	a revaluation of	decrease in accordance						
	with that other standard.									
		· · · ·								
	For non-cash generating assets such as ro			nd the like, value in use						
	is represented by the depreciated replacer	nent cost of the	asset.							
	At the time of edepting this hudget, it is not	At the time of adopting this budget, it is not possible to estimate the amount of impairment losses								
	(if any) as at 30 June 2017.		male the arnol							
	(II ally) as at 50 Julie 2017.									
	In any event, an impairment loss is a non-o	ash transaction	and conseque	ently, has no impact on						
	this budget document.									
n)	Trade and Other Payables									
	Trade and other payables represent liabilit	ies for goods a	nd services pro	vided to the Shire						
	prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Shire becomes obliged									
	to make future payments in respect of the									
	are unsecured, are recognised as a curren	t liability and ar	e normally paid	l within 30 days of						
	recognition.									
` ~`	Employee Benefits									
0)										
	Short-Term Employee Benefits									
	Provision is made for the Shire's obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term									
	employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees									
	render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employees									
	benefits are measured at the (undiscounte									
	settled.									
	The Shire's obligations for short-term emp	ovee benefits s	uch as wages,							
				atatemant of financial						
	leave are recognised as a part of current th	ade and other								
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ	ade and other pyees' annual lea	ave and long se	ervice leave						
		ade and other pyees' annual lea	ave and long se	ervice leave						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions	ade and other pyees' annual lea	ave and long se	ervice leave						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits	ade and other j yees' annual lea in the statemen	ave and long se t of financial po	ervice leave sition.						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv	ade and other j yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a	ave and long se t of financial po annual leave en	ervice leave sition.						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv be settled wholly within 12 months after the	rade and other j yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann	ave and long set t of financial po annual leave en nual reporting p	ervice leave sition. titlements not expected to eriod in which the						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Other	ade and other j yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em	ave and long set t of financial po annual leave en nual reporting p poloyee benefits	titlements not expected to eriod in which the s are measured at the						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Oth present value of the expected future payme	rade and other j yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made	ave and long set t of financial po- nual leave en- nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees.	titlements not expected to eriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Oth present value of the expected future payments payments incorporate anticipated future was	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary	ave and long set t of financial po- nual leave en- nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration	titlements not expected to eriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Othe present value of the expected future payments payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin	ave and long set t of financial po- nual leave en- nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference	ervice leave sition.						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long service be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Other present value of the expected future payments payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a end of the reporting period on government	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin bonds that hav	ave and long set t of financial po- nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference e maturity date	ervice leave sition. titlements not expected to reriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and ce to market yields at the s that approximate the						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long serv be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Othe present value of the expected future payments payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin bonds that hav	ave and long set t of financial por nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference e maturity date s in assumption	titlements not expected to reriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and ce to market yields at the s that approximate the s of obligations for other						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long service be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Other present value of the expected future payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a end of the reporting period on government terms of the obligations. Any remeasurement	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin bonds that hav	ave and long set t of financial por nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference e maturity date s in assumption	titlements not expected to reriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and ce to market yields at the s that approximate the s of obligations for other						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long service be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Other present value of the expected future payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a end of the reporting period on government terms of the obligations. Any remeasurement long-term employee benefits are recognise	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin bonds that hav	ave and long set t of financial por nual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference e maturity date s in assumption	titlements not expected to reriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and ce to market yields at the s that approximate the s of obligations for other						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long service be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Other present value of the expected future payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a end of the reporting period on government terms of the obligations. Any remeasurement long-term employee benefits are recognise	ade and other p yees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the and e end of the and er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin bonds that hav ents for changes id in profit or los	ave and long set t of financial por hual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference e maturity date is in assumption ss in the period	titlements not expected to reriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and ce to market yields at the s that approximate the s of obligations for other s in which the changes						
	position. The Shire's obligations for employ entitlements are recognised as provisions Other Long-Term Employee Benefits Provision is made for employees' long service be settled wholly within 12 months after the employees render the related service. Othe present value of the expected future payment payments incorporate anticipated future was employee departures and are discounted a end of the reporting period on government terms of the obligations. Any remeasurement long-term employee benefits are recognise occur.	ade and other pyees' annual lea in the statemen vice leave and a e end of the ann er long-term em ents to be made age and salary at rates determin bonds that hav ents for changes ad in profit or los	ave and long set t of financial por hual reporting p ployee benefits to employees. levels, duration ned by reference e maturity date is in assumption ss in the period	titlements not expected to reriod in which the s are measured at the Expected future s or service and ce to market yields at the s that approximate the s of obligations for other s in which the changes						

a)	Borrowing Costs									
-7										
	Borrowing costs are recognised as ar									
	attributable to the acquisition, constru	iction	or production	of	a qualifying as	set. V	Vhere this is th	е		
	case, they are capitalised as part of the	he co	st of the partie	cula	ar asset until su	ch tim	e as the asset	is		
	substantially ready for its intended us	e or s	sale.							
(q)	Provisions									
	Provisions are recognised when the Shire has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow									
		nat an	outflow of ed	on	omic benefits w	ill resu	ult and that out	flow		
	can be reliably measured.									
	Provisions are measured using the br	ant an	timete of the			to oott	la tha abligatio	n ot		
	Provisions are measured using the be the end of the reporting period.	51 65		ann		.0 Sell	le the obligatio	n al		
	the end of the reporting period.									
(r)	Leases									
	Leases of fixed assets where substan									
	the asset, but not legal ownership, are	e tran	sferred to the	Sł	nire, are classifi	ed as	finance leases	6.		
	Finance leases are capitalised record									
	fair value of the leased property or the									
	any guaranteed residual values. Leas			002	ated between th	ie redi	uction of the le	ase		
	liability and the lease interest expense	e for t	the period.							
	Leased assets are depresisted on a	straid	ht live heeie e	Vor	r the charter of t	boir o	atimated usofu	J		
	Leased assets are depreciated on a s lives or the lease term.	siraiyi		vei	the shorter of t	nen e	simaleu useiu	1		
	lives of the lease term.			-						
	Lease payments for operating leases	whe	re substantial	lv a	all the risks and	henef	fits remain with	1		
	Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.									
	and folder, and charged at expenses					00.				
	Lease incentives under operating lease	ses a	re recognised	as	a liability and a	amorti	sed on a straid	iht		
	line basis over the life of the lease ter									
(s)	Interests in Joint Arrangements									
	Joint arrangements represent the con					arties	in a business	ventu		
	where unanimous decisions about rel	evant	t activities are	re	quired.					
					<u> </u>			<i></i>		
	Separate joint venture entities providi									
	as a joint venture and accounted for u	ising	the equity me	thc	a. Refer to not	3 1(0)	for a description	on		
	of the equity method of accounting.			-						
_	Joint venture operations represent an	rango	mente whore	 hv i	ioint operatora	mainta	ain direct intera	ete in		
	each asset and exposure to each liab	•			• •					
	liabilities, revenue and expenses of jo									
	financial statements. Information about					•		uie		
						10.				
(t)	Current and Non-Current Classific	ation		-						
(-)										
_	In the determination of whether an as	set or	liability is cu	rer	nt or non-currer	it, con	sideration is gi	ven		
	to the time when each asset or liability									
	as current if it is expected to be settle									
	cycle. In the case of liabilities where t									
	settlement beyond 12 months, such a									
								g		
	current even if not expected to be settled within the next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current even if not expected to be realised in the next 12 months except for land									

	Significant Accounting Policies cor	nt.						_		
(u)	Comparative Figures									
	Where required, comparative figures h	nave	been adjuste	d to	conform with	n ch	hanges in present	ation		
	for the current budget year.									
(v)	Budget Comparative Figures									
	Unless otherwise stated, the budget comparative figures shown in this budget document relate to									
	the original budget estimate for the rel	levar	nt item of discl	losi	ıre.					

5.0 MEETING CLOSURE

The President closed the Special Council meeting at 4.03 pm.